Environmental Test and Integration Services (ETIS) Draft Request for Proposal (DRFP) Questions and Responses

1.  Question:

How many pages are allowed for the Basis of Estimate? 

On L.10 (b) (1) the table shows the BOE is limited to 75 pages whereas L.10 (b) (3) says the BOE has a 50 page limit.

Response:

75 pages are allowed for the Basis of Estimate.  Section L.10 (b) (3) has been corrected.

2.  Question:

L.9 (page 108) says total compensation plan shall include the “salaries/wages.”  This is restated in L.12.3 Subfactor C (page 121) where it says to provide “salary and fringe benefits for each category of such personnel.”  Should this salary data be included in the Mission Suitability Proposal, or should it be included in the Cost Proposal (similar to handling of benefit costs)?

Response:

Exhibit 3A and 3B should be included in the Cost section of the Proposal.  The Total Compensation Plan should be included in the Mission Suitability section of the Proposal.

3.  Question:

Can labor categories not included in Enclosure A be included in the cost?

Response:

Labor categories that are not included in Enclosure A and can not be mapped to the skill sets in Enclosure A can be included in the cost.  These costs shall be included in Other Reoccurring Direct Costs.

4.  Question:

Can an offeror also show union vs. non-union in Exhibit 3A-B charts?

Response:

Yes

5.  Question:

Is the labor category, Designer IV, missing in Exhibit 1, “Contract Direct Labor Loaded Rates & Percentage of Effort?”

Response:

Designer IV was missing, this has been corrected.

6.  Question:

The labor category, Designer IV, is missing in Exhibit 2, “Offeror to Contract Direct Labor Conversion.”  However, Drafter IV is entered two times.  Should Designer IV be added to Exhibit 2?

Response:

Designer IV was missing, this has been corrected.  Also, the duplicate Drafter IV has been removed.

7.  Question:

Is NASA planning to issue plug ODC values for Subtasks 2 to 14?

Response:

Exhibit 6 has been revised to include an ODC plug number for all subtasks except subtask 6.

8.  Question:

Would you please clarify the first paragraph on page 152, which states:

“Non-incumbent offerors will not receive a cost realism point adjustment as a result of any probable cost adjustments to direct labor cost to account for incumbent capture.”

Response:

This section has been revised to read: "offerors will not receive a cost realism point adjustment as a result of any probable cost adjustments to direct labor cost to account for incumbent capture.”

9.  Question:

The Wage Determination references CBA effective 6/2/97 through 6/1/02.  Will a Wage Determination be issued to reflect current CBA effective 6/2/05 through 6/1/08?  

Response:

The Wage Determination now reflects the current CBA.

10.  Question:

Can we use 8 point font for graphics? That’s typical of other proposals and with the 75 page limit would substantially help us do a proper job of conveying information about how we will meet the proposal requirements.

Response:

The graphic font size remains unchanged.

11.  Question:

Is Exhibit 12 included in the page count?  We suggest Exhibit 12 be excluded from the page count.

Response:

Exhibit 12 is excluded from the page count.  The proposal content and page limitation table has been updated accordingly.

12.  Question:

This section (L, RTO, Requirements page 118) requests to submit the flow of activities from start to completion (including time line). Is this requirement applicable to specific subtasks or all subtasks? This requirement seems to apply only to Subtasks 5, 7 and 8.

Response:

The section has been revised to read that the flow of activities is required as applicable.  Thus it is up to the offer to determine which subtasks it is necessary to submit flow activities for. 
13.  Question:

Please clarify the work described in SOW sections 1.1.4.1.4 and 1.3.3.4; both areas have the same description for work to be done.

Response:

The title and descriptions for WBS elements 1.1.4.1.4 Engineering Design and Analysis, and 1.3.3.4 Engineering Design and Analysis are as noted, the same. However, WBS 1.1.4.1.4 is a sub-element of 1.1.4 Mechanical Integration, and WBS 1.3.3.4 is a sub-element of 1.3.3 Engineering. One of the purposes of the WBS structure is to establish the basis for cost tracking. While the description of tasks required for Engineering Design and Analysis are generic, the intent is that WBS element 1.1.4.1 Engineering Design and Analysis is integral to WBS element 1.1.4 Mechanical Integration and as such costs will be tracked and rolled into Mechanical Integration Tasks. Engineering Design and Analysis tasks performed under WBS element 1.3.3 Engineering are tracked separately.   

14.  Question:

L.12.3 Subfactor C (page 123). Is IDIQ Maximum Ordering Value for IDIQ contracts the same as Contract ceiling value for IDIQ CPAF contracts?

Response:

The IDIQ Maximum Ordering Value and the Contract ceiling value for IDIQ CPAF contracts are the same.

15.  Question:

Is the 20% subcontracting goal based on the maximum order ceiling or is the 20% attached to the 6-month task ordering periods?

Response:

The subcontracting goals are based on the Maximum Ordering Value of $190,000.000.  It should be noted that while it is likely that the task order period of performance will be 6 months, it is possible that the period of performance may vary from task order to task order.

16.  Question:

Please clarify if the Government-provided plug number for material is inclusive or exclusive of contractor burdens.

Response:

Burden's have not been included.  Contractors are required to add any burdens that they would normally apply to materials cost in accordance with their approved cost accounting procedures.

17.  Question:

To better understand the dynamics of the requirements for the ETIS services will NASA please provide the past two 6-month mission forecasts and the resulting mission plan submitted by the incumbent contractor for support to this forecast?

Does the Mission Plan submitted by the incumbents identify CBA and Non-CBA labor?  If yes can NASA please provide this breakout?


Response:

The Government is currently working on a response to this question.
18.  Question:

The extensive requirements for responding to the RTO, and the corresponding low level of relevant performance data and specifications for performance not only give the incumbent a clear advantage in responding to the RTO but is also a real disadvantage for every other bidder considering the government’s use for the RTO response for determining cost realism.

Lack of such information as staffing and manpower allocations by functional WD and NASA/GSFC code or Project, actual staffing expenditures vs. incumbent submitted Mission Plan estimates, and number and type of adjustments made to initial Mission Plan Work Directives are essential to a contractors understanding of the dynamics of the work efforts and therefore the RTO response accuracy and “realism”.

Without these data only the incumbent has any real understanding of actual work requirements and accurate staffing.

Will NASA please provide these data and will NASA place in the Bidder’s Library the actual Work Directives and the incumbent submitted response as NASA GSFC has done on other procurements of this nature?

Response:

The current technical staff by WBS element is now in the Bidder's Library.

19.  Question:

Section L.10 PROPOSAL PREPARATION—GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS, (b)

indicated that the Basis of estimate is limited to 75 pages, while Section L.10 (3) states “….the Cost volume of your proposal is not page limited except for the 50 page limit for the Basis of Estimate (BOE) section.”  Can this apparent discrepancy please be clarified?

Response:

75 pages are allowed for the Basis of Estimate.  Section L.10 (b) (3) has been corrected.

20.  Question:

In addition to the basic contract that has been placed in the bidder’s library, can NASA please provide all contract modifications, including award fee documentation for all periods of the contract?
Response:

The Government is currently working to compile these documents.  These documents will only be available in hard copy format.  If an offeror would like a hardcopy of these documents they should contact the Contracting Officer to make arrangements to pick up the documents.
21.  Question:

Within the ETIS Library the links for the following documents are inoperable:

· 11-01-216 – HCC Drive System Operation Procedure

· 11-01-592 – HCC, Status Load, DDAS Operating Procedure

· 11-06-004 – HCC Maintenance Procedure

· 09PC-PP05 - Static Load Testing

· 09PC-WI101 - Tinius Olsen UTM Operating Procedure

· 09PC-FP02 - Fabrication Services

Will NASA please correct this situation?

Response:

This has been corrected and all links are now working.

22.  Question:

It is our understanding that all computer equipment currently provided to the incumbent staff will transition to the new contract based on the data in the RTO.  However, the current contract shows over $1M in computer related costs allocated to the contract.

Please clarify what the contractor's responsibility is for upgrading or replacing the existing computer equipment.

Response:  

All computer equipment that is currently Government Furnished will transition to the new contract.  During the course of the new contract the computer equipment will need to be refreshed.  The contractor will be responsible for refreshing this equipment which will be Contractor Acquired Government Property via a task order.

23.  Question:

The following table from the current contract provides a breakout of ODC costs.  Can NASA please provide historical data identifying the expenditures for ODCs by contract year?   Only the incumbent can provide a reasonably close approximation of these projected costs through the historical data that they have access to.  If historical data is not to be provided, please detail the individual requirements for each of the four categories so that potential bidders can effectively estimate the costs for these.

Will the government consider specifying “plug’ values for the four categories in the table below for pricing purposes?
	CATEGORIES
	BASIC
	OPTION
	TOTAL

	Raw Materials and Purchased Parts
	$2,208,640 
	$3,571,233 
	$5,779,873 

	Travel
	$734,860 
	$1,188,223 
	$1,923,083 

	Computers
	$416,150 
	$672,890 
	$1,089,040 

	Facilities
	$1,473,780 
	$2,383,010 
	$3,856,790 

	TOTAL*
	$4,833,430 
	$7,815,3568 
	$12,648,286 


Response:

This information was important for the previous "mission" contract type where the offeror had to bid the entire 5 year effort as part of their proposal.  This procurement will result in an IDIQ contract where the successful offeror will be able to bid estimated non-recurring ODC's for each task when issued.  Therefore, it is not necessary to provide ODC plug numbers for the entire 5 year effort as part of this RFP. 

24.  Question:

The Administrator has continuously challenged the Centers and industry to be innovative in addressing the “Future NASA”.  How will innovations be evaluated for ETIS?  In light of the ebbs and flows in workload that were presented to industry through various discussions between NASA management and staff and the bidder, we expected that some level of emphasis would be placed in the evaluation criteria on proposed innovative approaches to bring work to GSFC to manage short falls in work efforts from internal GSFC projects.  Given the lack of emphasis to evaluate this key factor, and the use of historical data as a basis for cost realism (FAR 15.404) it appears that NASA award places higher score to a "business as usual" approach to this contract.

Please describe where in the submission innovations will be evaluated and how their evaluation will be considered in the overall “point score” for Mission Suitability.

Response:

Proposed innovations will be evaluated in Mission Suitability Subfactor B which states "The Government will evaluate any new or innovative methods, techniques or technologies that are proposed by the offeror for their benefit to the Government".  The Government does not allocate points to subelements.  Thus innovations will be part of the overall Subfactor B Mission Suitability score.
25.  Question:

Subpart 19.12—Small Disadvantaged

Business Participation Program, 19.1202-3 Considerations in developing an evaluation factor or subfactor.

Can NASA please define the specific criteria from the above FAR that will be used to evaluate the required Small Business Subcontracting Plan?

Response:  
As stated in section M, "This subfactor will consider the percent of proposed SDB participation against total contract value and the complexity and variety of the work SDB concerns are to perform".  Also, "Specific identification of SDB subcontractors and associated work and the past performance of the offeror in meeting SDB goals and earning any associated incentives will be considered".

26.  Question:

In Attachment 1 – Property List provided in Amendment 1, the table provided does not have entries between 1023 and 1778. Were these rows left blank intentionally?

Response:

There are no entries after list number 1022.

27.  Question:

D-RFP – Link http://esrs.gov noted in Section B.1-Item 17 is not accessible.

 

Response:

The address for the website is correct and has been verified to be working.
28.  Question:
Could you please provide contact information on the companies interested in the ETIS opportunity?  

Response:

The Government is working to compile this information and will post a revised interested parties list to the bidder's library.

 

29.  Question:
Could you please post the list of attendees after the ETIS facilities tour has taken place?  

Response:

A list of attendees has been posted to the bidder's library.

30.  Question: 
I was expecting to see a few more local companies on the list.  Have some companies requested not to have their names published?

 Response:

No company has requested that there name be withheld from the interested parties list.


31.  Question: 
A portion of the contract is to include SB, 8a, WOSB, etc., can you summarize participation by these firms in the incumbent's current contract? Have many of the 8a firms graduated from the program? 

Response:

To find out information on which companies have graduated from the 8a program please contact the Small Business Administration (SBA).  For the other information requested please submit a Freedom of Information Act (FOIA) request.

32.  Question: 
Does the center have a plan to assure continuity of the current work force of about 200 if a new firm is selected based on the varied expertise required for this work?
Response:

It is up to the offeror to propose a transition plan and how the risks of the transition will be mitigated.

33.  Question: 
Is renovation of the centrifuge facility included in this contract?

Response:

The renovation of the centrifuge facility is not included in this contract.  However, as an IDIQ contract there are various future projects that may be supported using the task order process.
34.  Question: 
Is removal or upgrade of the space shuttle or HST mock-up in the out years included in this contract? 

Response:

No. The Space Shuttle mock up was removed from this requirement.  No requirement has been identified for new HST mock-ups.  However, future projects may be supported using the IDIQ task order process.

35.  Question: 
Is the number of engineers (42) anticipated to rise based upon the upgrades to facilities mentioned in the SOW and the anticipated workload of 40 spacecraft to be design, built, tested (and launched) in the near future by the Center?

Response: 

It is up to the bidders to propose the numbers of engineers and support people that are required based on the representative task order requirements.  The Government has moved to an IDIQ contract because of the uncertainty of the workload in the future requirements.  Therefore it will be up to the contractor to propose the necessary workforce for each task order.
36.  Question:
Regarding Subfactors A and B, it appears that you are giving double evaluation coverage for technical approach details. The Subfactor B requirement to demonstrate "Understanding the RTO [task] objectives and problems" and "evaluating how the offeror will carry out specific tasks associated with the SOW"  is essentially the same requirement as Subfactor A's "evaluation of an offeror's understanding and technical approach to meet the needs, technical difficulties, and objective of the SOW by WBS."  The duplication in requirements stem of course from the RTO essentially covering the same SOW elements as the overall contract scope. This is certain to create a lot of duplication in the Subfactor A and B responses from bidders. 

Response:
Subfactor A and B have been combined to eliminate potential duplication.
37.  Question:
550 of 1000 points (over half) of the evaluation criteria is linked to a bidder creatively describing how he will implement your well-defined Operating Procedures. This leaves 450 points to award for a critical Management Plan Subfactor and the remaining two Subfactors. It appears to me that with well-established GSFC Facility Operating Procedures and any winning contractor hiring the incumbent workforce, that technical approach is not quite as critical, and a greater weighting could be assigned to Management Plan (over three pages of requirements discussion in Section M)

Response:
50 points has been moved from Subfactor B to Subfactor C.
38.  Question:
There appear to be duplicate requests for the same information between:

Subfactor A, Understanding the Requirements; Statement of Work in section 1.4, Management and Subfactor C, Management. 

 

For example Subfactor C asks for response on Property Management System (C.6) and Subfactor A asks for a response on Equipment and Property Control (1.4.7 SOW)

 

Considering the 75 page count would you allow bidders to avoid submitting duplicate responses by addressing duplicate areas only in the Subfactor C areas?

Response:
The Government assessment is that showing an understanding of the requirement and  showing how a  requirement is going to be managed are two separate things.
39.  Question:
 

The labor category, Designer IV, is identified in Enclosure A, but not in Exhibits 1 and 2. Please clarify. 

Response:
This has been corrected.
40.  Question:

The labor category, Tech Editor, is identified in the Collective Bargaining Agreement, but not in Exhibits 1 and 2. Please clarify. 

Response:
It is up to the offeror to propose whatever additional labor categories they feel necessary to meet the requirements of this procurement.  
41.  Question :
Attachment K, Mission Assurance Guidelines, was not provided. Please clarify. 

Response:
This has been corrected.
42.   Question: 

What is the current level-of-effort, by RFP labor categories, of the non-union workforce? To what extent does the government seek to maintain this level-of-effort and labor mix during the follow-on ETIS program?

Response:

The majority of the non-union workforce is management and administrative.  It is up to the offerors to determine their approach to management and administrative support.
43.  Question:

How will the government evaluate an offeror's cost proposal, inclusive of RTO costs, where the offeror uses other than actual union rates, though proposed rates are within published ranges? If no evaluated cost impact will be experienced, will the impact be experienced in the award? If yes, what is the government process for adjusting the award fee for this factor?

Response:
The Government recognizes that the information set forth in Enclosure B provides a mid-point of the current union agreement and that this data may not, in all cases, represent the actual average labor rate for a given labor category.  The Government has analyzed this data and does not feel that there are not any discrepancies large enough to have a significant adverse effect on an offeror during performance of the contract.
44.  Question:

Both RFP Section L and M require the offeror to provide its technical approach to executing all SOW Tasks in Subfactor A, "Understanding the Requirements." Both Sections of the RFP then require the offeror to provide its technical approach to executing 14 of the SOW Tasks in Subfactor B, " Representative Task Order." Given the severe page limits imposed by the Government, can this redundancy in addressing technical approaches be eliminated, or can the offeror's proposal simply point the reader back to a previous discussion presented in Subfactor A that addresses the Subfactor B requirement for technical approaches?

Response:
Subfactor A and B have been combined to eliminate potential duplication.
45. Question:

There appears to be a potential Organizational Conflict of Interest (OCI).  Would the Government consider adopting a multi-step advisory process to solicit OCI mitigation plans from offerors prior to release of the RFP?
Response:
The Government has researched the specific requirements of this contract and has determined that during performance of this contract there is significant Government oversight which mitigates the risk of any potential OCI.  Therefore, the Government has determined that it is not necessary to implement a multi-step advisory process.  In addition the following clauses are included in the RFP: Limitation Of Future Contracting (1852.209‑71) and Access To Sensitive Information (1852.237-72).  
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